

Agenda Item 2.1.1

CWM TAF MORGANNWG UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

 ‘CONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON 27 JUNE 2023, AS A VIRTUAL MEETING WHICH WAS HELD VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS

PRESENT
Mel Jehu
   

-
Independent Member (Chair)
Nicola Milligan

-
Independent Member
Ian Wells


-
Independent Member

Carolyn Donoghue
-
Independent Member
Patsy Roseblade

-
Independent Member

Geraint Hopkins 

-
Independent Member 
IN ATTENDANCE 

Linda Prosser

-
Executive Director of Strategy & 
Transformation 
Sally May


-
Executive Director of Finance
Gethin Hughes 

-
Chief Operating Officer 

Sarah James 

-
Deputy Chief Operating Officer – 
Acute Services
Julie Denley 

- 
Deputy Chief Operating Officer – 
Mental Health, Primary Care and Community Services
Alan Martin 

-
Head of Operational Estates 

Paul Dalton 

-
Internal Audit and Assurance 

(Observing)

Sara Utley 


-
External Audit (Observing)

Cally Hamblyn

-
Assistant Director of Governance & 

Risk
Kathrine Davies 

- 
Corporate Governance Manager
(Meeting Secretariat)
PART 1. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

1.1.0
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting including Alan Martin, Head of Operational Estates for Agenda Item 6.4 Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC) Investigation 
1.2.0
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Tim Burns, Assistant Director of Capital and Estates. 
1.3.0
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS



There were none declared. 
PART 2. CONSENT AGENDA 

2.1 FOR APPROVAL

2.1.1
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 4 MAY 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record 
   subject to one minor amendment. 
2.1.2
‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE PLANNING, PERFORMANCE & FINANCE IN COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 4 MAY 2023
Resolution: The minutes were APPROVED as a true and accurate record 
                 subject to one minor amendment. 
2.1.3
DRAFT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23
The Chair advised Members that following the meeting the Committee Annual Self-Assessment Survey link would be circulated to members for completion and review at the August 2023 meeting. 
Resolution: The Revised Terms of Reference were ENDORSED FOR BOARD        

                  APPROVAL.
2.2 FOR NOTING
2.2.1
MONTHLY MONITORING RETURNS TO WELSH GOVERNMENT 

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Monitoring Returns for Months 12, 1  

                  & 2.

2.2.2
ACTION LOG  

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Action Log.  

3.0 MAIN AGENDA

3.1.0
MATTERS ARISING NOT PREVIOUSLY CONTAINED WITHIN THE ACTION LOG. 
There were none. 
4.0 GOVERANCE

4.1.0
ORGANISATIONAL RISK REGISTER 

C. Hamblyn presented the report that outlined the high-level organisational risks that had been assigned to the Committee, and highlighted the management actions and mitigation. 
C Hamblyn drew attention to risks 4491 and 4456, which had previously been identified by Members of requiring review, and confirmed that a review was underway by the respective Care Groups. An update will be available at the next meeting.  

N. Milligan referred to risk 4491 where the mitigating action noted that a harm review was being piloted in ophthalmology, and raised concern that the service was currently without a Head Orthoptist or Band 8a, and queried what impact that would have on any harm review due to the Head Orthoptist having responsibility for governance and accountability. In response, G. Hughes advised that recruitment was underway for a Head Orthoptist.  He advised that he would seek and provide an update to all Members outside of the meeting in terms of N Milligan’s specific query.  
N. Milligan referred to Risk 4458 which was linked to the Six Goals that stated the task and finish groups had completed their delivery of the agreed objectives. However, she highlighted that there were no outcomes or updates to reflect the activity undertaken within this risk update or on the specific agenda item regarding the Six Goals Programme. 
G. Hughes advised that with regard to risk 4458 this would be addressed under the Six Goals update on the agenda. 
P. Roseblade referred to risk 4772 and the software update for the laundry and advised that it stated there would be an update in April, she also queried if there was an Infection, Prevention, Control impact to this risk.  C. Hamblyn assured P. Roseblade that the facilities team were reviewing this risk and she would highlight the query raised. It was noted that an update on the risk had also been captured within the Action Log. 
Resolution: The report was NOTED. 

Action:
 To provide an update on the recruitment of the Orthoptist Post to  

                Members of the Committee outside of the meeting. 
Action: 
To highlight the query on the laundry risk 4772 with the facilities team. 

5.0 IMPROVING CARE 
5.1.0 
SIX GOALS FOR URGENT AND EMERGENCY CARE 
S. Hughes provided an update on progress to date with the Six Goals. 
C. Donoghue referred to page 3 of the report where it had stated that task and finish groups for the stroke pathway had completed the delivery of agreed objectives and transitioned into business-as-usual operational delivery, and queried whether they were seeing any impact of this.   S. James advised that there was still a significant amount of work in relation to stroke services and it was embedded within the Six Goals programme.  It was noted that it is the responsibility of the Care Groups working with the Chief Operating Officers team and external partners to improve upon the delivery of the stroke pathway. 

C. Donoghue queried what the rapid 90-day development plan referred to on page 5 of the report was. In response, S. James advised that the 90-day development plan was a robust plan where they would attempt to reset thinking, for example they recently did this in the Royal Glamorgan Hospital with the zero tolerance to four hour waits and had made some headway and the handover delays had significantly improved.  She added that they were hoping to roll this initiative out in the Princess of Wales hospital shortly. 
C. Donoghue referred to the e-whiteboards and sought clarity on what this was.  S. James invited C. Donoghue to visit the sites to see how the e-whiteboards worked which was revolutionising the way patient data was used and provided one list and one picture of the patient journey from start to finish, providing information on where they were on their pathway and enabling staff to act promptly upon the needs of the patient. 
I Wells advised that the Digital and Data Committee had received a demonstration on the e-whiteboards at their June 2023 meeting, and this was proposed for a future Board Development Session. 
I Wells also queried whether social care would be able to access the e-whiteboard technology.  In response, S. James confirmed that it is was the ambition that part 1 of the project would provide one list that both health and social care colleagues could use. 
M. Jehu referred to the workstreams and queried whether there were timescales that they worked to.  S. James confirmed that it depended on which workstream it was as some had start and finish points but others were still ongoing.  She added that they had got to the point now where they were able to close down the following workstreams as they were now embedded into the Care Groups as part of the day-to-day business and confirmed that these were - Minor Injury Unit, Emergency Department and Non-Invasive Pathway.
In referencing the social care setting and engagement with other organisations, M. Jehu queried whether all partner agencies were working at the same level of pace.  S. James confirmed that this was the case and there was positive engagement from the beginning with monthly meetings of the Six Goals Board being held with all partners involved. 
In response, M. Jehu queried whether there was a clear line of sight between the strategic intent of the senior staff involved and the staff who had the responsibility of carrying out the operational delivery.  G. Hughes confirmed that there was positive engagement with all staff involved. 
Resolution: The Report was NOTED.  
5.2.0
INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE DASHBOARD  

L. Prosser presented the report providing the Committee with a summary on performance against a number of key quality and performance indicators.  L. Prosser confirmed that there were no changes to the format of the report and changes were expected in September 2023.  She handed over to G. Hughes to present the key performance matters contained within the report. 
I Wells referred to the ambulance handover data which was very positive and noted how the Health Board had been commended by the Emergency Ambulance Services Committee (EASC).   He also referred to the follow up patients not booked (FUNB) and in particular ophthalmology, and queried when this would start to see improvements. G. Hughes advised that it was important to highlight that with regard to FUNB, previously the engagement strategy with the clinicians was not as robust as it could have been.  He added that they were now working closely with the Clinical Director and hoping that FUNB would be changed to Patient Initiated Follow Up (PIFU).
With regard to Ophthalmology, G. Hughes advised that it was more challenging, however, they had recently undertaken a review of Glaucoma and had developed a number of improvements ensuring that high risk patients were followed up. 

C. Donoghue referred to page 12 where it mentioned that there were no ring-fenced patient beds due to challenges with patient flow and sought clarity on that statement.   She also referred to diagnostics and the numbers of referrals which supported the evidence of having to do things differently.   G. Hughes advised that it was all linked primarily to orthopaedics where they have to operate patients on a closed pathway and they were unable to mix orthopaedic patients with any other patients. 
N. Milligan referred to page 7 with regard to bacteraemia where it stated that the target failed and queried whether that was correct as the target was 55 and 22 and was showing 85 and 40.  G. Hughes confirmed that they run at a rate higher than the target so to achieve the target it would need to be 21 or lower. 
N. Milligan referred to stroke performance which appeared to have transitioned into ‘business as usual’ activity, and drew Members attention to the stroke data figures for February 2023 compared to June which were showing that the figures had decreased.  G. Hughes advised that stroke was a priority with a decision made to invest in additional capacity.  He added that they recognised that they were making marginal improvements in the way in which the stroke service was resourced and set up, however, it was challenging to achieve the level of compliance due to patient flow. 
N. Milligan in response, added that she did appreciate the flow difficulties but to be seen by a stroke specialist you did not need to be in a dedicated ‘stroke’ bed and that element would not be impacted by flow.  G. Hughes advised that there were challenges during the weekends where there was only one stroke physician covering two sites. 
P. Roseblade referred to community care on page 4 of the report and the number of new patients accessing NHS dental services and advised that it would be useful to see the number of patients that had tried to access NHS dental services.  J Denley advised that she did not know the exact number, however, advised that there was now a requirement in the NHS dental contract for dentists to register a proportion of new patients.  She added that the Health Board maintains a list of patients waiting and a mechanism of signposting them to dentists offering NHS treatment. 
P. Roseblade referred to the contract for stroke thrombectomy undertaken at Bristol and that patients were more likely to be thrombolysed within that critical window, however, on looking at the data that did not appear to be happening. G. Hughes advised that extended hours were now being offered at Bristol so there was better coverage for the teams and patients. He added that the window for thrombectomy was restricted as it was only available for patients to get there by 8pm. However, it was now extended until 10pm and they did have some very positive stories of patients that have got to Bristol and how quickly they could recover. 

P. Roseblade referred to the Ophthalmology improvement plan and queried when they would receive an update.  G. Hughes advised that an update on the improvement plan will be scheduled for a future meeting and also noted positively that they a new corneal surgeon had been appointed 
P. Roseblade was pleased to note the improvements in performance relating to patients aged 60 and over with a fractured hip.  She also congratulated the teams on achieving 100% performance on red releases.
In relation to previous discussions regarding access to dentistry services, M. Jehu, sought clarity in relation to the numbers of young people accessing dental services.  J. Denley advised that the ‘Designed to Smile’ service had now been reinstated in schools which would hopefully start to see an impact.  
Resolution: The report was NOTED
Action: 
To provide an update on the Ophthalmology Improvement Plan for the Committee. 
5.3.0
MENTAL HEALTH 2022-23 SERVICE IMPROVEMENT FUNDING AND UPDATE
J. Denley presented the report that provided the Committee with an overview of the Service Improvement Funding awarded by Welsh Government for Mental Health for the years 2022-23 and 2023-24.
I Wells advised that it was positive to see the investment in this area and queried whether there was any fragility of services due to the way that the funding was allocated.  J. Denley helpfully described the process and funding model. 
In response to a query from P. Roseblade, J Denley confirmed that the funding was recurrent. 
M. Jehu queried when the Health Board would start to see outcomes from the funding allocated and when it would start to see an impact.   J. Denley confirmed that they were required to report back to Welsh Government on individual submissions and the annual objectives related to the service plans for the Care Groups.
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the additional mental health funding 
                 allocation and approach by the Mental Health and Learning  

                 Disability Care Group.
5.4.0
OPHTHALMOLOGY STRATEGY AND CATARACTS BUSINESS CASE

The Chair in introducing the item expressed concern in relation to the limited time afforded to Members to consider this item in order to provide robust scrutiny and reflections, the Chair therefore stated that Members were not in a position to agree any decision at this meeting. 
In response, L Prosser assured the Committee that although it was originally anticipated that the committee would be asked to make a decision in relation to this regional service there were still governance and financial considerations ongoing which had altered the position. L Prosser therefore confirmed that no decision was expected from Members at this meeting, however a briefing to support a future decision would be helpful. 

L Prosser continued to provide a helpful overview as to the background and progress to date that will hopefully support Members in reaching a decision at the appropriate time. 
It was further noted that due to the challenging timescales associated with the service commencing in July 2023, Chairs Urgent Action may need to be undertaken. However, the governance process would be outlined in due course once the outstanding issues were resolved. 
Resolution: Following discussion on this matter the Committee NOTED the 

update, and supported the need for any urgent action, subject to allowing sufficient consideration time of any documentation.  
6.1.0
MONTH 12 MOVEMENTS FROM FORECAST 
S. May presented the report that provided the Committee with a summary of the movements in the Month 12 Delegated position.
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 
6.2.0
MONTH 2 FINANCE REPORT 


S. May presented the Month 2 Finance Report. 

P Roseblade queried whether there would be an advantage to dedicate time at this Committee, inviting Care Groups experiencing difficulties in achieving their savings to come along and assure them that the Board were aware of the challenges and scrutiny is being afforded. G. Hughes explained the significant levels of scrutiny being afforded to this area and the frequency of reporting.  He suggested that some of the Care Groups could attend the Committee to provide presentations, however, this would require a ‘private’ session due to the commercially sensitive content. 

S. May advised that given the extent of the deficit and the deficit across Wales the savings support was reported via the Executive Leadership Group.  She added that Care Groups will be subject to significant scrutiny in terms of the processes in place to manage savings targets and suggested a further update is provided to Board next year with regard to the scale of the savings delivery which would be beneficial for the Board to understand the challenges.  

C. Donoghue stressed the importance of ensuring that any invitation to Care Groups added value to the process and did not create additional pressure.  


S. May advised that the savings were really important but the real test will be the expenditure, however it was too early to see the whole picture at Month 2.

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 

6.3.0
MONTH 2 FINANCE PERFORMANCE REPORT


S. May presented the Month 2 Performance Report. 

Resolution: The Committee NOTED the report. 

6.4.0 
All Wales Reinforced Autoclaved Aerated Concrete (RAAC) Investigation


A. Martin presented the report that provided an update on the survey and inspections carried out across the Health Board sites. 

Members of the Committee agreed that the outcome of this should be highlighted to the Board as a positive escalation and captured within the Committee Highlight Report to Board. 
Resolution: The Committee NOTED that following inspections from James and 
                 Nicholas and WSP Consulting Structural Engineers no RAAC has  

                 been identified in buildings owned by CTMUHB or in buildings 
                 where CTMUHB hold the head lease that were constructed between 
                 1960 and 1995.
7.0.0 OTHER MATTERS 

7.1.0

HIGHLIGHT REPORT TO BOARD 
Resolution: The Committee AGREED that the report would be prepared by the 

Governance Team following the meeting. 
7.2.0

FORWARD WORK PLAN 

The Chair asked Members of the Committee if they had any items that they would like to include for future meetings to let the Governance Team know.  
Resolution: The Committee NOTED the Forward Work Plan 
7.3.0

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 


There was none. 
7.4.0
HOW DID WE DO TODAY?


The Committee felt that an appropriate balance had been struck in terms of open discussions with a strategic focus as well as organisational values being taken into account.  


M. Jehu advised that due to the changes in Independent Member membership of the Committees, P. Roseblade would be taking over as Chair of the Committee from the August 2023 meeting. M. Jehu congratulated P. Roseblade and thanked all members for the support they had provided to him in his role as Chair.  
7.5.0
CLOSE OF THE MEETING – DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
The next full meeting of the Committee was scheduled to be held on 22 August 2023. 
PAGE  
	‘Confirmed’ minutes Planning, Performance & Finance Committee 

27.06.2023                                     
	Page 1 of 10
	Planning, Performance & Finance Committee          

22 August 2023



